
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MINUTES 
 THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2016 - 1:30 PM 
 CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, VERO BEACH, FLORIDA 
 
PRESENT:  Chairman, Lawrence Lauffer; Vice Chairman, Honey Minuse;  Members: Linda 
Hillman, Norman Wells, Don Croteau, Alternate Member #1 Richard Cahoy and Alternate Member 
#2, Ken Daige Also Present:  Planning and Development Director, Tim McGarry; Project Manager, 
Cheri Fitzgerald and Deputy City Clerk, Sherri Philo 
 
I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 

A) Agenda Additions and/or Deletions 
 
None 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A)    Regular Meeting – January 21, 2016  
 
Mrs. Hillman referred to the minutes of the January 21, 2016 Planning and Zoning Board meeting.  
She noted that on page one (1) “Ms.” Croteau should be “Mr.” Croteau.   
 
Mrs. Minuse made a motion to approve the minutes of the January 21, 2016 Planning and 
Zoning Board meeting as amended.  Mrs. Hillman seconded the motion and it passed 
unanimously. 
 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
IV. VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION REPORT 
 

A)  Application #AX15-000003 - 3780 Indian River Boulevard 
 
Mrs. Cheri Fitzgerald, Project Manager, went over staff’s report with the Board members (attached 
to the original minutes).  Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board approve the 
Voluntary Annexation Report and recommend to City Council to move forward to annex the subject 
property. 
 
Mrs. Minuse referred to the map included in the backup material.  She asked what is the zoning of 
the property to the east. 
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald said it is conservation land that is located in the City and is owned by Indian River 
Land Trust (IRLT). 
 
Mrs. Minuse asked is the rest of the land located in the City also owned by IRLT.  
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes. 
 
Mrs. Minuse said then the proposed property is located in the middle of conservation lands. 
 

          1 02/18/16 P&Z 
 



Mrs. Fitzgerald said it is adjacent to the north and adjacent to the east of this property. 
 
Mrs. Minuse asked what is the zoning designation for the angular piece of property located along 
Indian River Boulevard.   
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald said that she was not sure. 
 
Mrs. Minuse asked what is their intent.  She asked are they going to mitigate. 
 
Mrs. Fitzgerald said they don’t have a site plan, but mitigating for the wetlands would be part of the 
site plan process.   
 
Mr. Bruce Barkett, Attorney representing the applicant, said staff’s presentation was thorough and 
complete and they agree with everything staff said.   
 
Mr. Croteau made a motion that the Board approves staff’s recommendation to approve 
Voluntary Annexation Application #AX15-000003 for the property located at 3780 Indian 
River Boulevard.  Mr. Wells seconded the motion and it passed 5-0 with Mr. Wells voting yes, 
Mrs. Hillman yes, Mr. Croteau yes, Mrs. Minuse yes, and Mr. Lauffer yes. 
 
V. PLANNING DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 
Mr. Tim McGarry, Planning and Development Director, reported that there has been a lot of 
discussion with the City Council regarding the Vision Plan.  He handed out to the Board members a 
report on the implementation status of the Vision Plan that he prepared for the City Council (on file 
in the City Clerk’s office).   
 
Mr. Daige felt the timing was great to have this document because it shows the public they have been 
doing some things with the Vision Plan.  He asked Mr. McGarry where they were in working on the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Mr. McGarry said the consultant he hired is working on the housing element, conservation and 
coastal management.  He said they are dividing it into two documents, one being the policy and one 
being the analysis.  He reported that he has completed the background on the transportation element 
and the background on the land use element.  Regarding the infrastructure, he has completed solid 
waste, stormwater, and is finishing up on sanitary sewer.   He is going to try to start bringing policies 
before the Board in March.  He said they are still looking at five or six months before the 
Comprehensive Plan is complete.   
 
Mr. Daige asked with staff’s workload increasing, will they be able to meet that time frame. 
 
Mr. McGarry said they are going to have to.     
 
Mr. Daige said they are busy now and they are going to get busier.   
 
Mr. McGarry said at budget time he will be asking for one position to his Department, which would 
be at the Planning Technician level.   
 
Mr. Lauffer referred to the City of Vero Beach Comprehensive Plan Update document that was 
previously given to the Board members.  He asked is this document current.   
 

          2 02/18/16 P&Z 
 



Mr. McGarry answered no.  He said that he would send the Board members updated information.   
 
VI. BOARD MEMBERS’ MATTERS 
 
Mr. Daige reported that a meeting was held last night regarding the Cultural Arts Village, which 
there was a packed house and everyone was very pleased with what they saw in the presentation. 
 
Mrs. Hillman said it was an excellent presentation.  She noted that they are looking for a lot of 
volunteers.  She would be contacting the City Attorney’s office to see if there is a conflict of interest 
with members of this Board volunteering for any of the positions.  She suggested that if a Board 
member is interested that they also contact the City Attorney’s office.   
 
Mr. Croteau said it is very important to recruit the people who live in that community to participate.   
 
Mr. Lauffer said that he is getting a lot of questions regarding the old Diesel Plant.   
 
Mr. Jim O’Connor, City Manager, reported that the City received three (3) proposals for the old 
Diesel Plant, which were from Power Productions, Inc; Integra Corporations; and Treasure Coast 
Distilling Company, Inc.  The proposals were reviewed, interviews were held, and the Committee 
ranked Integra Corporations as their number one (1) choice.  He reported that their business plan was 
outstanding.  He said that they were giving the City two options, which were: 1) that the City deals 
with environmental issues or 2) for $150,000 dollars they will take it as is.  He reported that they 
have experience in the City, which they did renovations on 14th Avenue, the bowling alley, etc.  He 
said staff would be making their recommendation to the City Council at their March 1, 2016 
meeting. 
 
Mr. Daige said people are wondering if they (Integra Corporations) are awarded the bid, if they 
would treat the old Diesel Plant building the same as they have treated the old Post Office building 
on 14th Avenue.  He said the paint has been stripped and weeds and grass are growing around the 
building.  He said it has been like this for a number of months.  He said it is his understanding that 
the company is in good financial shape so he didn’t think putting a coat of paint on the building 
would hurt them.   
 
Mr. McGarry said that he would talk to them.  He thought that they were probably waiting before 
putting more money into the Post Office building to see how the old Diesel Plant building works out. 
  
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Today’s meeting adjourned at 2:37 p.m. 
 
/sp 
 
 
 

          3 02/18/16 P&Z 
 


	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MINUTES
	 THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2016 - 1:30 PM
	 CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, VERO BEACH, FLORIDA
	PRESENT:  Chairman, Lawrence Lauffer; Vice Chairman, Honey Minuse;  Members: Linda Hillman, Norman Wells, Don Croteau, Alternate Member #1 Richard Cahoy and Alternate Member #2, Ken Daige Also Present:  Planning and Development Director, Tim McGarry; Project Manager, Cheri Fitzgerald and Deputy City Clerk, Sherri Philo
	I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	A) Agenda Additions and/or Deletions
	None
	II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A)    Regular Meeting – January 21, 2016 
	Mrs. Hillman referred to the minutes of the January 21, 2016 Planning and Zoning Board meeting.  She noted that on page one (1) “Ms.” Croteau should be “Mr.” Croteau.  
	Mrs. Minuse made a motion to approve the minutes of the January 21, 2016 Planning and Zoning Board meeting as amended.  Mrs. Hillman seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	III. PUBLIC COMMENT
	None
	IV. VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION REPORT
	A)  Application #AX15-000003 - 3780 Indian River Boulevard
	Mrs. Cheri Fitzgerald, Project Manager, went over staff’s report with the Board members (attached to the original minutes).  Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board approve the Voluntary Annexation Report and recommend to City Council to move forward to annex the subject property.
	Mrs. Minuse referred to the map included in the backup material.  She asked what is the zoning of the property to the east.
	Mrs. Fitzgerald said it is conservation land that is located in the City and is owned by Indian River Land Trust (IRLT).
	Mrs. Minuse asked is the rest of the land located in the City also owned by IRLT. 
	Mrs. Fitzgerald answered yes.
	Mrs. Minuse said then the proposed property is located in the middle of conservation lands.
	Mrs. Fitzgerald said it is adjacent to the north and adjacent to the east of this property.
	Mrs. Minuse asked what is the zoning designation for the angular piece of property located along Indian River Boulevard.  
	Mrs. Fitzgerald said that she was not sure.
	Mrs. Minuse asked what is their intent.  She asked are they going to mitigate.
	Mrs. Fitzgerald said they don’t have a site plan, but mitigating for the wetlands would be part of the site plan process.  
	Mr. Bruce Barkett, Attorney representing the applicant, said staff’s presentation was thorough and complete and they agree with everything staff said.  
	Mr. Croteau made a motion that the Board approves staff’s recommendation to approve Voluntary Annexation Application #AX15-000003 for the property located at 3780 Indian River Boulevard.  Mr. Wells seconded the motion and it passed 5-0 with Mr. Wells voting yes, Mrs. Hillman yes, Mr. Croteau yes, Mrs. Minuse yes, and Mr. Lauffer yes.
	V. PLANNING DEPARTMENT MATTERS
	Mr. Tim McGarry, Planning and Development Director, reported that there has been a lot of discussion with the City Council regarding the Vision Plan.  He handed out to the Board members a report on the implementation status of the Vision Plan that he prepared for the City Council (on file in the City Clerk’s office).  
	Mr. Daige felt the timing was great to have this document because it shows the public they have been doing some things with the Vision Plan.  He asked Mr. McGarry where they were in working on the Comprehensive Plan.
	Mr. McGarry said the consultant he hired is working on the housing element, conservation and coastal management.  He said they are dividing it into two documents, one being the policy and one being the analysis.  He reported that he has completed the background on the transportation element and the background on the land use element.  Regarding the infrastructure, he has completed solid waste, stormwater, and is finishing up on sanitary sewer.   He is going to try to start bringing policies before the Board in March.  He said they are still looking at five or six months before the Comprehensive Plan is complete.  
	Mr. Daige asked with staff’s workload increasing, will they be able to meet that time frame.
	Mr. McGarry said they are going to have to.    
	Mr. Daige said they are busy now and they are going to get busier.  
	Mr. McGarry said at budget time he will be asking for one position to his Department, which would be at the Planning Technician level.  
	Mr. Lauffer referred to the City of Vero Beach Comprehensive Plan Update document that was previously given to the Board members.  He asked is this document current.  
	Mr. McGarry answered no.  He said that he would send the Board members updated information.  
	VI. BOARD MEMBERS’ MATTERS
	Mr. Daige reported that a meeting was held last night regarding the Cultural Arts Village, which there was a packed house and everyone was very pleased with what they saw in the presentation.
	Mrs. Hillman said it was an excellent presentation.  She noted that they are looking for a lot of volunteers.  She would be contacting the City Attorney’s office to see if there is a conflict of interest with members of this Board volunteering for any of the positions.  She suggested that if a Board member is interested that they also contact the City Attorney’s office.  
	Mr. Croteau said it is very important to recruit the people who live in that community to participate.  
	Mr. Lauffer said that he is getting a lot of questions regarding the old Diesel Plant.  
	Mr. Jim O’Connor, City Manager, reported that the City received three (3) proposals for the old Diesel Plant, which were from Power Productions, Inc; Integra Corporations; and Treasure Coast Distilling Company, Inc.  The proposals were reviewed, interviews were held, and the Committee ranked Integra Corporations as their number one (1) choice.  He reported that their business plan was outstanding.  He said that they were giving the City two options, which were: 1) that the City deals with environmental issues or 2) for $150,000 dollars they will take it as is.  He reported that they have experience in the City, which they did renovations on 14th Avenue, the bowling alley, etc.  He said staff would be making their recommendation to the City Council at their March 1, 2016 meeting.
	Mr. Daige said people are wondering if they (Integra Corporations) are awarded the bid, if they would treat the old Diesel Plant building the same as they have treated the old Post Office building on 14th Avenue.  He said the paint has been stripped and weeds and grass are growing around the building.  He said it has been like this for a number of months.  He said it is his understanding that the company is in good financial shape so he didn’t think putting a coat of paint on the building would hurt them.  
	Mr. McGarry said that he would talk to them.  He thought that they were probably waiting before putting more money into the Post Office building to see how the old Diesel Plant building works out.  
	VII. ADJOURNMENT
	Today’s meeting adjourned at 2:37 p.m.
	/sp


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /All
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket true
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /UseDeviceIndependentColor
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType true
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (North America Web/Internet)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<


    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>



    /HUN <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 6.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 6.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>


    /SKY <>

    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 6.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


